
City of Caney 
Regular Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5th, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Call Meeting to Order: Mayor Joshua Elliott 

Roll Call 

Zach Ellison Justin Harkey Aaron Elliott Lori Patterson 
Valerie Hurd Kenith Butts Addie Traxson Debbie Wood 

Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Joshua Elliott 

Invocation: Mayor Joshua Elliott 

Public Comments 
Any citizen desiring to address the Council shall be recognized, advance to the podium, and state his/her name and address for 
the record. Comments shall be limited to 3 minutes unless extended by a majority vote of the Council. The Council does not 
hear matters involving litigation or City Personnel. The Council does not take action on subjects not on the agenda unless 
unusual or hardship conditions exist. 
 
 

Consent Agenda 
Presented by Joshua Elliott, Mayor 
A. Approval of the Minutes for the 01/16/2024 & 01/25/2024 Meetings 
B. Appropriations and Payroll No. 01/19/2024 $205,521.63 

a. Approval of Purchases over $5,000  
i. EFTPS (Payroll Taxes)  $      11,757.59 
ii. Payroll (01/19/2024)   $      53,499.24 
iii. KPERS (Retirement)   $        7,428.65 
iv. R.E.P     $  8,881.90   
v. Waste Connections   $       19,280.94 
vi. BCBS     $       22,094.19 
vii. AWG     $     43,103.25 
viii. Evergy     $  10,739.73 

C. Main Street Auto- $3,434.42: Tires for PD, Alternator, Batteries and fuel treatments 
D. CMB License for Casey’s General Store 

 
Recommended Action: ___________ make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda Items A-
B as presented. _____________ seconded the motion. Motion Carries: ___________ 
 
Recommended Action: ___________ make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda Item C 
Main Street Auto $3,434.42. _____________ seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 
___________ 
 
Old Business 
New Council Business 
A. Approve CDBG Housing Contract 

Presented by Amber Dean, City Clerk 
 
Recommended Action: ___________ made a motion to approve the CDBG Housing Contract as 
presented. _____________ seconded the motion. Motion Carries: ____________ 
 
 

B. Approve the Housing Plan for the CDBG Grant 
Presented by Amber Dean, City Clerk 
 



City of Caney 
Regular Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5th, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. 
 

Recommended Action: ___________ made a motion to approve the Housing plan as presented. 
_____________ seconded the motion. Motion Carries: ____________ 
 

C. Approve the Demolition Plan for the CDBG Grant 
Presented by Amber Dean, City Clerk 
 
Recommended Action: ___________ made a motion to approve the Demolition plan as presented. 
_____________ seconded the motion. Motion Carries: ____________ 

 

D. Approve the CDBG Environmental Review Packet and the Request for Release of 
Funds and Certification 
Presented by Amber Dean, City Clerk 
 
Recommended Action: ___________ made a motion to approve the CDBG Environmental Review 
Packet and the Request for Release of Funds and Certification as presented. _____________ 
seconded the motion. Motion Carries: ____________ 

 

E. Executive Session (Non-Elected Personnel) 
To discuss confidential information relating to personnel matters of non-elected personnel 
according to K.S.A 75-4319 (1) 
 
Recommended Action: ___________move to Recess into executive session to discuss 
confidential information relating to personnel matters of non-elected personnel, according to 
K.S.A 75-4319 (1) for 5 minutes to include the City Council and Mayor.. Entering in at 
_________ and returning to regular session at __________. 
__________Seconded Motion. Motion Carries: ______________ 
 
__________moved to return to regular session at _________. ______________seconded 
the motion. Motion Carries:__________________ 
 

F. Appoint New City Clerk 
Presented by Mayor Joshua Elliott 
 
Recommended Action: ______________ made a motion to appoint_______________________as 
the new City Clerk with a Salary of_____________. _____________ Seconded the motion. Motion 
Carries: ____________ 
 

Department Comments: 
 
 
Council Comments: 
 
 
Adjournment 
_____________ Moved to adjourn the meeting at_________. 
________________Seconded Motion. Motion Carries: __________. 



City of Caney 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, January 16th, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Call Meeting to Order: Mayor Joshua Elliott 

Roll Call-all present 

Zach Ellison Justin Harkey Aaron Elliott Lori Patterson 
Valerie Hurd Kenith Butts Addie Traxson Debbie Wood 

Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Joshua Elliott 

Invocation: Mayor Joshua Elliott 

Public Comments 
Robert Hahn: 201 W 9th- Spoke about his JMV Letter. He has addressed the problem at this time 
 
 

Consent Agenda 
Council Member Wood  a motion to approve the Consent Agenda Items A-C as presented. Council Member 
Patterson seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 
 
Old Business 
 
New Council Business 
 
A. Accept Best bid from Central States Capital Market for the bond 

Council Member Wood made a motion to accept the bid from Central States Market. Council 
Member Wood seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 

B. Approve Ordinance 2024-01-Authorizing the Issuance of the Bonds 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to approve Ordinance 2024-01 as presented. Council Member Wood 
seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 

Roll Call 

Zach Ellison-Aye Justin Harkey Aye Aaron Elliott Aye Lori Patterson Aye 
Valerie Hurd Aye Kenith Butts Aye Addie Traxson Aye Debbie Wood Aye 

 

C. Approve Resolution 24-02: General Obligation Bonds Series 2024-A 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to approve Resolution 24-07: General Obligation Bonds Series 2024-
A  as presented. Council Member Wood seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 
 
Council Member Butts Made a motion to table Items D-J until the 1st Meeting in April. Council Member Ellison 
seconded the Motion. Motion Carried: 6-2 
 
Discussion on the process of Code Enforcement 
 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to place Items D-J back on the agenda tonight. Council Member Elliott 
seconded. Motion Carried: 7-1 
 

 
D. Approve Resolution 24-03: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement at 310 South Fawn 

Council Member Patterson made a motion to approve Resolution 24-03: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement as 
presented. Council member Wood seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 7-1 
 

E. Approve Resolution 24-04: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement at 507 S Wood 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to approve Resolution 24-04: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement as 
presented. Council member Hurd seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 7-1 



City of Caney 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, January 16th, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. 
 

 
F. Approve Resolution 24-05: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement at 201 W 9th 

Removed from Agenda- Property Owner addressed issue 
 

G. Approve Resolution 24-05: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement at 211 S Bradley 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to approve Resolution 24-05: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement as 
presented. Council member Wood seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 7-1 
 

H. Approve Resolution 24-06: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement at 607 E 5th Ave 
Council Member Ellison made a motion to approve Resolution 24-06: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement as 
presented. Council member Elliott seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 7-1 
 

I. Approve Resolution 24-07: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement at 600 N Foreman 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to approve Resolution 24-07: Junked Motor Vehicle Abatement as 
presented. Council member Wood seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 7-1 

 

J. Approve Resolution 24-08: Declaration of a  Water Watch and rescind all previous water 
warning or water emergency resolutions 
Council Member Ellison made a motion to approve Resolution 24-08: Declaration of a  Water Watch and rescind 
all previous water warning or water emergency resolutions  as presented. Council Member Traxson seconded 
the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 

K. Elect City Council President 
Presented by Amber Dean, City Clerk: The City Council Shall elect one of its own body as the president of the 
council for a term of 1 year. 
 
Council Member Elliott made a motion to appoint Council Member Ellison as Council President for a period of 1 
year. Council Member Elliott seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 5-3 
 

L. Appoint Paul Kritz as the Caney City Attorney for the term of 1 year 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to reappoint Paul Kritz as the City Attorney for a term of 1 year. 
Council Member Traxson seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 

 

M. Appoint John Horst as the Caney Municipal Jude for the term of 1 year 
Council Member Ellison made a motion to reappoint John Horst as Caney Municipal Judge for a term of 1 year. 
Council Member Elliott seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 

N. Executive Session (Non-Elected Personnel) 
Council Member Ellison made a motion to Recess into executive session to discuss confidential 
information relating to personnel matters of non-elected personnel, according to K.S.A 75-4319 (1) for 
10 minutes to include the City Council, Mayor and City Administrator. Entering in at 7:12 p.m and 
returning to regular session at 7:22 p.m.. 
Council Member Traxson seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 
Council Member Wood made a motion to extend Executive Session 5 minutes, returning at 7: 27 p.m. 
Council Member Patterson seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to return to regular session at 7:28 p.m. Council Member 
Elliott seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 

 

O. Appoint Amber Dean as the Caney City Clerk for the term of 1 year 
Council Member Ellison motioned to reappoint Amber Dean as the City Clerk for a term of 1 year. Council 
Member Elliott seconded the motion. Motion Carries:8-0 
 

P. Approve MOU between Caney Fire Department and Montgomery County Rural Fire 
Council Member Hurd made a motion to approve the MOU as presented. Council Member Wood seconded. 
Motion carries: 8-0 
 



City of Caney 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, January 16th, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Q. Approve the AFG Grant submittal with the request to waive the match requirement. 

Council Member Ellison motioned to approve the submittal of the AFG Grant as presented. Council Member 
Hurd seconded the Motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 

R. Approve the purchase of a Franklin 60hp submersible pump w/ 6” motor (River pump) for the 
Water Department in the amount of $8,498.40 
Council Member Patterson motioned to approve the Purchase of the River pump in the amount of $8,498.40 
presented. Council Member Hurd seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 

S. Approve the Phase 2 Water Project-Meter Replacement 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to approve the phase 2 water project and secure the ARPA funds for 
the grant match. Council Member Elliott seconded. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 

T. Executive Session (Non-Elected Personnel) 
Council Member Ellison made a motion  to Recess to enter the executive session to discuss 
confidential information relating to non-elected personnel matters, according to K.S.A 75-4319 (1) for 
5 minutes to include the City Council, Mayor, City Clerk and City Administrator. Entering in at 7:51 
p.m. and returning to regular session at 7:56 p.m. 
Council Member Patterson seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to return to regular session. Council Member Elliott 
seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 
 
Council Member Elliott made a motion to donate a cemetery plot for Chad Johnson. Council Member 
Hurd seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 7-0 

 

Department Comments: 
• Mayor-Joshua Elliott- Welcomed Kelley Zellner back! 
• City Administrator- Kelley Zellner- Thanks everyone for prayers. He thanks EMT services for saving 

his life. Update on current projects. 
 
Council Comments: 
Council Member Patterson: Reminded that the Sales Tax is now @ 2% only on state sales tax 
 
Adjournment 
Council Member Patterson Moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:01 p.m. 
Council Member Traxson Seconded Motion. Motion Carries: 8-0 

 

 
Joshua Elliott., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
Amber Dean, City Clerk 

 



City of Caney 
Special Council Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, January 25th, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Call Meeting to Order: Mayor Joshua Elliott 

Roll Call 

Zach Ellison- Present Justin Harkey-Present Aaron Elliott-Present Lori Patterson-Present 
Valerie Hurd-Absent Kenith Butts-Absent Addie Traxson-Present Debbie Wood-Present 

Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Joshua Elliott 

Invocation: Mayor Joshua Elliott 

 
A. Executive Session (Non-Elected Personnel) 

Council Member Patterson made a motion to Recess into executive session to discuss confidential 
information relating to personnel matters of non-elected personnel, according to K.S.A 75-4319 (1) for 
15 minutes to include the City Council and Mayor with the City Clerk on standby. Entering in at 6:31 
p.m. and returning to regular session at 6:46 p.m.. 
Council Member Ellison seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 7-0 
 
Council Member Patterson made a motion to return to regular session. Council Member Butts 
seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 7-0 
 
Council member Ellison made a motion to accepted the resignation of Amber Dean, City Clerk. 
Council Member Elliott seconded the motion. Motion Carries: 7-0 
 

 
Adjournment 
Council Member Patterson Moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:47 p.m. 
Council member Wood Seconded Motion. Motion Carries: 7-0 
 

 

 
Joshua Elliott., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
Amber Dean, City Clerk 

 

























HOUSING PLAN 
 

City of Caney 
 

The United States Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) allocates funds used by the 
Kansas Department of Commerce for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Housing 
Rehabilitation program.  The City of Caney has been awarded a CDBG grant from Commerce for the 
purpose of housing rehabilitation within the city limits of Caney.   
 
HOMEOWNER REHABILITATION 
 
The maximum amount for rehabilitation is $25,000 per unit.  This program is designed to provide 
housing rehabilitation for low- to moderate-income individuals who own a housing unit within the city 
limits of Caney, KS. 
 
Applicants will be screened and rated in accordance with eligibility criteria as set out in this Housing 
Rehabilitation Plan. 

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS  
 
Only property located within the city limits of Caney is eligible for this program.  To qualify, total 
household income for all individuals 18 years or older living in the home must be less than the low- to-
moderate income guidelines set by HUD for Montgomery County, Kansas.  The eligible home must be 
the primary residence of the applicant for owner-occupied units.   
 
Households must meet the following 2023 HUD income limitations in accordance with CDBG rules 
(income from all sources of family members over 18 years of age). The program will utilize the most 
current income limits as they become available each year. 
 

No. In Household LMI Income 
1 $40,800 
2 $46,600 
3 $52,450 
4 $58,250 
5 $62,950 
6 $67,600 
7 $72,250 
8 $76,900 

 
1. The real property taxes and utilities must be current for all properties. 

 
2. Hazard insurance naming the City as an additional insured in at least the amount of the 

rehabilitation contract will be required.  If repairs are necessary to obtain the hazard 
insurance, then evidence will be required showing that coverage will be provided upon 
completion of the rehabilitation.  

 
3. *The applicant must have owned the unit for at least six (6) months prior to the 

application date. 



 
VERIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY 
 
All income information will be kept confidential.  
 
Applicants must qualify as low- to-moderate income (LMI) prior to the time the inspection for 
rehabilitation is conducted.  Re-Verification will be required if a new income tax return has been filed 
before inspection. Also, Re-verification will be require if 6 months has laps and rehabilitation has not 
begun 
 

Adjusted Gross Income from the latest years IRS 1040 will be used for income 
verification.  All income tax returns will need to be included for anyone in the 
household over 18 that are not attending school.  The most recent tax return must be 
used – NO EXCEPTIONS. 

*NET ASSETS 
 

I. Additionally, the household residents cannot have access to net assets exceeding 
$ , excluding primary residence, personal vehicle, and household goods. 

 
2. Personal financial statements that list the assets and liabilities of each household 

member over 18 will be required. 
 

3.  Net assets will be the difference between the fair market value of the asset and the 
liabilities against it. 

 
4. The applicant will be responsible for providing loan balances from the lender in 

writing or grant permission to the City to obtain. 
 

5.  Assessed valuation of the property from the real and personal property tax rolls may 
be used as a comparison for the value listed for real and personal property assets. 

 
6. Livestock and harvested crops will be valued at current market prices. 

 
 
TYPES OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
 

1. Households who income-qualify will be awarded CDBG Housing Rehabilitation funds 
in the form of a soft or deferred loan for the full amount of the rehabilitation costs or the 
maximum allowed under CDBG guidelines, whichever is less, for a three-year period. 

 
2. A soft loan may be forgiven and considered a grant if all contractual agreements are 

followed.   
 

3. The homeowners are required under CDBG guidelines to enter into a contractual 
agreement with the City, which will place a lien against the rehabilitated property for a 
three-year period to meet the guidelines as set out by the Housing Rehabilitation Plan.   

 
4. The agreement will also stipulate that the unit must be the homeowners’ primary 

residence, kept and maintained in a standard condition. 



 
5. If within the three-year lien period the homeowner should move from the housing unit, it 

must be sold to a low- to-moderate income person, who will occupy the unit as the 
primary residence and will assume the balance of the prorated lien.  The City must 
verify the income of the person intending to purchase the home, or if the home is sold to 
someone other than a low- to-moderate income individual, the cost of the rehabilitation 
will be prorated and must be paid back into the City’s Housing program by the 
homeowner.   

 
6. If a homeowner dies within the three-year lien period and has no spouse, the home may 

be sold or rented to a low- to-moderate income household.  If sold or rented to a non-
LMI family, the homeowner’s estate must pay back the prorated amount on the lien.  For 
example, if the home is sold in the 13th month following completion of the 
rehabilitation, then 12/36 or 1/3 of the loan would be forgiven and the homeowner’s 
estate would repay 2/3 of the original amount. 

 
APPLICATION SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
First-Come/First-Served 
 

A public meeting will be held to review and explain the application and grant program. Applications 
must be turned in to City Hall during business hours or by mail or will be taken at City Hall on 
  Between 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. Applications will be accepted on a first-come/first- 
served basis with priority being given to applications received on or before  , 20  
Applications received after this date will be processed only if grant funds are still available. 
Individuals having received a Housing Rehabilitation grant in the past are not eligible. 

 

STANDARDS FOR IMPROVEMENTS 
 
This program does not consist of remodeling or cosmetic repairs.  The goal of the Housing 
Rehabilitation program is to add twenty years to the useful life of the housing unit.  Housing 
rehabilitation activities will include only the repairs necessary to meet the Housing Quality Standards 
(HQS) defined by the Housing Rehabilitation program as determined by the Housing Inspector.  
Housing units considered for rehabilitation must meet the definitions of a substandard unit and must be 
suitable for rehabilitation.  
 
“Substandard” is defined as a housing unit that does not adequately meet Housing Quality Standards 
criteria set for the following:  Building Exterior (foundation, roof, gutters, doors, windows, and 
insulation), Heating System, Plumbing System, Electrical Systems/Appliances or Building Interior 
(ceilings, walls, floors, doors, ventilation, smoke detectors) 
 
“Suitable for Rehabilitation” is defined as a substandard house for which it is technically and 
financially feasible to restore it to a standard condition, given the funding limits of the program. 
 
*Emergency repairs and handicapped accessibility items may be addressed on a case-by-case basis at 
the discretion of the Housing Board and City Council following the CDBG guidelines.  Emergency 
repairs must be verified by the City’s Housing Inspector and must cause an immediate and 



overwhelming threat to the home’s occupant.  The emergency repair must be brought to code 
standards.  
 
Only one grant per house may be awarded. 
 
LIMITED/INELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
 
The following activities are limited to the identified restrictions:  
 

1. *Mobile Homes. 

a. Mobile homes will not receive assistance until all other eligible units have been 
rehabilitated. 

b. The City will only assist mobile homes if they were manufactured after 1976, 
are on a permanent foundation and the owner of the mobile home also owns the 
land. In addition, the entire property must be taxed as real property. 

c. The home may only be rehabilitated to the minimum standard. 

2. *Rental Units. 
 

a. Tenant must be documented to be LMI. 
b. If homeowner is documented to be LMI, he/she must contribute 15 percent of 

rehabilitation costs. 
c. If homeowner is documented to be non-LMI, homeowner must provide at 

least 25 percent of rehabilitation costs. 

3. Contracts for deed  

a.  Any seller must be unable to use the property as collateral and must be unable 
to convey title to the property unless such a transaction is subject to the 
land sales contract; legally accepted limitation of the conveyance must 
exist in recorded form. 

b. The contract or ownership interest must be recorded. 
c. The seller must be obligated to deliver to the buyer a fee simple title to the 

property on full payment of the contract price, without qualification. 
d. The purchaser must have: 

1. Full use, possession and quiet enjoyment of the property; 
2. Equitable title to the property; and 
3. Full rights ofredemption for a period of not less than 90 days unless such 

rights are afforded by local law. 
e. The purchaser and seller must jointly sign the repayment agreement. The 

repayment agreement resolves the following: 
1. If the buyer moves from the unit prior to the expiration of the repayment 

agreement, the seller must do one of the following: 
ii. Rent or sell the dwelling to an LMI person; or 
iii. Repay a prorated portion of the housing rehabilitation costs. 

2. If the seller is not willing to enter into the repayment agreement, the 
dwelling will not be eligible for rehabilitation. 

 



Without these minimum provisions in a contract, the grantee should assume that the 
seller has an ownership interest in the property and should be treated as such with 
regard to state rehabilitation provisions, i.e., treated as a rental. 

 

4. *Living Trust 

a. Applicants meeting all other eligible criteria, and who currently reside on a 
property with a title held by a Living Trust, are eligible for a rehabilitation 
soft or forgivable loan. 

b. Income eligibility is determined by the income of the person residing at the 
property. 

c. The holder of the deed will be required to sign all grant documents. 
d. A property held as a Living Trust must be considered as a tenant and handles 

as such. 

5. * Life Estates. 

 

a. Applicants meeting all other eligible criteria but deed held as life estate is 
eligible for a rehabilitation soft or forgivable loan. 

b. Occupant must reside on the property as their permanent residence. 
c. Income eligibility is determined by the income of the occupant of the 

property. 
d. Grant conditions will provide that the grant monies, made available at the time 

of the rehabilitation be due and payable upon sale or transfer of the property, 
and upon termination of the life estate of the current occupant. 



  
The following activities are considered ineligible:  

 
8. Remodeling or work not required to meet CDBG standards. 
 
9. Air conditioners or air conditioning, unless required by a doctor. 
 
10. Properties with a business located within the residence. 
 

“WALK-AWAY” POLICY 
 

If the initial inspection and cost estimate for bringing the home up to Housing Quality Standards 
indicates that the cost of rehabilitation is expected to exceed the maximum allowable, the homeowner 
will be notified.  The application will be considered a “walk away” until: 

 
1. The homeowner has completed some of the repairs on their own and the estimate of the 

remaining work would be at or below the maximum allowable.  The homeowner is 
responsible to notify the City when they have the work completed so the property can be 
re-inspected.  All work must be approved by the Housing Inspector. 

 
2. If the homeowner is unable to make repairs they may provide the necessary additional 

funds within 30 days after they are notified.  If the funds have not been deposited at the 
City within the allotted time, the City will cancel the application, close the file and 
“walk away” from the property. 

 
If the original cost estimate is below the maximum allowable, the property will be included in the next 
bidding process.  Homeowners will be notified within 10 days after the bid opening if the lowest 
contractor bid for their home exceeds the maximum allowable.  In that event, the applicant will have 
the option to supply the additional funds.  The applicant will be given 20 days to satisfy the 
requirements for all necessary additional funding.  Additional funds must be received in full by the City 
prior to the execution of the construction contract.  If the homeowner cannot provide the additional 
funds, the City may “walk away” from that home.  If the applicant does not respond in 5 days, the City 
will cancel the application, close the file and “walk away” from the property. 

 
Lead-based paint risk assessment inspections will be completed after the Housing Quality Standards 
inspection and if the estimated cost for repairs is below $25,000.  If the lead-based paint risk 
assessment shows lead and repairs cannot be done with containment, which allows a family use of 
restroom, cooking and sleeping facilities, the family must relocate to a lead safe housing unit for the 
duration of the rehabilitation and until the dwelling passes the clearance test.  Refusal to relocate will 
be grounds to “walk away”. 
 
Children, age six or younger, will be required to relocate if lead activity is necessary, even if 
containment is possible.  Refusal to relocate will be grounds to “walk away”. 
 
 
 
 
LEAD-BASED PAINT REQUIREMENTS 
 



The homeowner, contractor, City, Housing Board, Grant Administrator and Housing Inspector will be 
required to follow all regulations of all state and federal regulations regarding lead-based paint hazards.  
The appropriate regulations are hereby made a part of this plan. 
 
Participation in the Housing Rehabilitation program is voluntary for all parties.  All property proposed 
for rehabilitation, and built prior to 1978, will be inspected for lead-based paint. 
 
The City will require that children younger than 7 years of age living in a house built prior to 1978 be 
tested for an elevated blood lead level.  If an applicant refuses to allow the child’s blood to be tested, 
the City may elect not to rehabilitate the home. 
 
The City is not required to pay any expenses for relocation of the household that may be required by 
lead-based paint activities during construction.  However, the City recognizes that if relocation is 
required, it could produce a degree of hardship on the household.  It will be the policy of the program 
to provide the household with $ 90.00 per day relocation expense allowance for a household of two 
persons, plus $ 15.00 per day for each additional household member.  This allowance will be paid for 
the actual days the members are required to be out of the home.  If a family voluntarily relocates 
during rehabilitation, when relocation is not required, it will be the policy of the City to not pay any 
relocation expenses. 
 
LEAD-BASED PAINT PRECAUTIONS 
 
All occupants of property to be rehabilitated will be notified of the following: 
 

1. All households will receive both the “Protect Your Family from Lead in Your Home” 
and “Renovation Right” brochures. 

 
2. All households will receive a copy of the risk assessment report to sign within 15 days 

after the risk assessment is completed. 
 

3. If lead-based paint is discovered in the assessment, households will receive a “Lead 
Hazard Reduction Notice” within 15 days after work is completed. 

 
4. All households, which have been identified as having lead-based paint, will receive a 

copy of the “Lead Hazard Clearance Notice”. 
 

5. Require any individual 7 years of age or younger, residing in the home, to have a blood 
test for elevated levels of lead. 

 
6. Homeowners may sign a waiver to remain in their home if no child seven or under lives 

in the house and the repairs can be completed with self-containment; and restroom, 
cooking and sleeping facilities are available. 

 
7. Relocation costs to a lead free dwelling may be paid to a homeowner or tenant when the 

risk assessment shows elevated levels of lead in areas where repairs will be done with or 
without containment and a restroom, cooking, and sleeping facilities are not available. 

 
8. Participation in the Housing Rehabilitation program is voluntary, therefore, temporary 

relocation expenses are not required.   



 
 
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Homeowner 
 
The homeowner must agree to abide by all the rules and regulations of the Housing Rehabilitation 
program and allow the rehabilitation work to be performed on his/her home in accordance with the 
Housing and Lead Hazard Control Plans, the Material Application Manual and/or the CDBG Housing 
Quality Standards guidelines.  
 
The homeowner/tenant must: 
 

1. Complete a Property Owners’ Soft Loan Agreement. 
 
2. Remove all obstacles from inside and outside of the house in order to view and 

subsequently work on the dwelling.  This may include removing any stored items from 
areas and cutting any weeds or saplings that may obscure the foundation, or hauling 
away items stacked in or around the house, or homeowner/tenant must agree to allow 
debris to be removed from the premises by the contractor or City. 

 
3. Grant access to the dwelling for additional inspections, pre-bid conference inspections, 

rehabilitation work, ongoing inspections of work, and state monitoring visit.  
 

4. Provide electricity and water to the contractor at no cost. 
 

5. Sign a waiver of liability for the property identified in the application. 
 

6. Provide proof of property insurance and must keep the dwelling insured for the three-
year soft loan period. 

 
7. Shall provide documentation of lead blood level for every child age seven (7) and under 

if the home was constructed prior to 1978, prior to rehabilitation work proceeding. 
 

8. Must agree to relocate should it become necessary in order to perform the lead hazard 
work. 

 
9. Maintain the rehabilitated property in good condition and repair so it will not become a 

substandard property. 
 

10. Must fill out an application and supply income documentation for the Weatherization 
program. 

 
11. The homeowner will be required to attend this final inspection and to sign the final 

inspection certificate.  If the homeowner has questions or comments on any of the 
rehabilitation work it should be mentioned at this time, prior to signing the certificate of 
completion.  

 
12.   If requested, the homeowner must make the home available at a CDBG monitoring visit. 

 
 



GRIEVANCE POLICY 
 
All grievances or concerns regarding civil rights, fair housing, the City Council, the Grant 
Administrator, City Clerk, the Housing Inspector, the contractor(s), the contractor’s workmanship, the 
bid procedure(s), the awarding of the contracts etc. shall follow the grievance policy included in this 
application.  All grievances and concerns should first be made in writing to the City Clerk.  The City 
Clerk will then observe the following procedure: 
 
Level 1 
 
The City Clerk receives a written complaint. 
 
The City Clerk contacts the Grant Administrator if the controversy is regarding workmanship, client 
treatment or contractor misunderstandings.  The Grant Administrator will contact the Housing 
Inspector and contractor to meet on site and address the client or contractor concerns.  A written 
resolution will be made to the complainant and a copy of the resolution will be forwarded to the City 
Clerk.  
 
The City Clerk will immediately advance the complaint to level 2 if the complaint is on fair housing, 
civil rights, procurement or an environmental issue.  
 
The complainant has the right to appeal the decision and must do so in writing to the City Clerk 
within five days from the date of the written resolution.   
 
Level 2  
 
The written complaint concerning fair housing, civil rights, procurement, the environment or an appeal 
of a previous decision will be reviewed by the Mayor, and City Clerk, with the assistance of the Grant 
Administrator and the City Attorney.  If the complaint is a fair housing or civil rights concern, the City 
may submit the complaint to the Kansas Human Rights Commission, 130 South Market, Suite 7050, 
Wichita, Kansas, 67202, for investigation and resolution.  After review, a written decision will be made 
to the complainant and the City Council. 
 
The complainant has the right to appeal the decision and must do so in writing to the City Clerk 
within five days from the date of the written resolution.  
 
Level 3 
 
The City Clerk receives a written appeal from the complainant. The City Council will review the appeal 
with assistance from the City Attorney and Grant Administrator.  All written evidence will be made 
available to the City Council for their deliberation.  The City Council shall present a written resolution 
to the complainant within 15 days of the date the appeal was received. 
 
All grievances/concerns regarding this project should first be made in writing.  The letter must be 
submitted to the City Clerk. The City Clerk will then refer the complaint to the appropriate party(ies) to 
resolve the dispute. Written notice will be given to the complainant within 15 days. If the grievance 
remains unsolved after this action, the Grant Administrator, Housing Inspector, contractor and the 
homeowner will review the situation. Subsequently, a written recommendation of resolution will be 
forwarded to the Housing Board. 
 



If this problem still cannot be resolved, the Housing Board will make disposition of the complaint from 
documentation that the complainant, Housing Inspector, contractor and/or Grant Administrator have 
submitted.  Any of the involved parties may be called to appear before the Housing Board for 
clarification of the matter.  At the time the Housing Board agrees, as a group, to make disposition of the 
complaint, they must in writing state their disposition and how it was determined.  The Housing Board 
will then meet with the City Council to state their disposition of the complaint. 
 
The governing body will then review the complaint at the next City Council meeting.  The City Council 
will determine at that meeting if the Housing Board’s decision is acceptable or unacceptable. If it is 
unacceptable, the City Council has the right to overturn the decision of the Housing Board. At that time 
the final disposition will be made in writing to the complainant.  
 
Final responsibility for the Housing Rehabilitation program rests with the City.  The City will be 
involved with the Housing program, perform duties as necessary and will have the final decision 
in local matters involving this grant. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 
 
The City will follow the Kansas Department of Commerce’s Conflict of Interest Policy.  Persons 
covered under this policy include:  a city employee, elected or appointed official, agent, consultant, 
officer or any immediate family member or business partner of the above, of the recipient, or any 
designated public agencies or sub-recipients, which are receiving funds from the CDBG program. A 
copy of this policy has been adopted and is available for review from the City.   
 
Amendments of these policies and procedures may be made by the City and must be submitted to the 
Kansas Department of Commerce for approval.  When changes in the CDBG guidelines would 
adversely affect Housing Rehabilitation program applications already under review, such application 
will be evaluated under the CDBG guidelines in effect at the time of application. 
 
Adoption of the Housing Rehabilitation Plan 
 
This Housing Rehabilitation Plan and all related attachments was approved and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Caney on the _____ day of             , 2024. 
 
City of Caney 
 
 
 
BY:______________________________ 
 Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:_________________________ 

  City Clerk



 

Housing Plan 2024 
 

11 
 

 



Community Development Block Grant 42 Housing Handbook  

 

DEMOLITION PLAN 
 

City of Caney, Kansas 
 
1. Target Area Location: CDBG funds are targeted within an area in the city, generally on the 

West side of Caney. The North boundary is West Taylor Street, and the South boundary is 
West Fouth Ave. The East boundary is North Spring Street, and the West boundary is is North 
Foreman. See attached map. The City of Caney has funds available for the removal of 
residential structures in residential areas within the target area of Caney, KS 

 
2. Structure Eligibility: Upon request to demolish an unsafe, dangerous or blighted structure, 

the City inspection staff shall certify that the structure to be demolished is in condemnable 
condition and presents a hazard to public health and safety. A structure not deemed 
condemnable by the City inspection staff shall not be eligible for this program. 

 
3. Eligible Activities: Structures that are in condemnable condition would be removed under 

this plan, in accordance to the ranking system below. Structures to be removed using the 
CDBG funds would need to be in the target area. Those to be removed with City funds 
should be within the target area and would comply with the City Voluntary Demolition 
program. These activities would result in the improvement of the health and safety of area 
residents. 

 
4.  Ineligible Activities: Any activity that does not result in the removal of a blighting influence 

or improving the health and safety of residents. Property that has not be vacant for more than 
three (3) months. 

 
5. Expenditure Limits: Cost must be reasonable. 

 
6.  Application Procedures: The availability of demolition funds will be publicized to residents 

of the target area through the local newspaper and other appropriate means. Applicants will 
be able to pick up forms at City Hall, 100 West Fourth Ave, Caney KS 6733 ,from 8:00 a.m. – 
4:30 p.m. A copy of the application may be picked up and should be returned to the 
 office. 

 
Applications will be screened and recipients will be ranked by the procedures below. The 
final determination of recipients and work to be done will be dependent upon findings of the 
preliminary inspections, cost estimates and contractor bids. 

 
7. Role of Property Owner: Property owners agree to allow the demolition work and to provide 

access to the property by demolition personnel. Access will be required for preliminary 
inspections, pre-bid conference inspections, demolition and ongoing inspection of work. A 
waiver of liability must be completed for each property, which is included in the application. 

 
8. Complaint Procedures: The City of Caney Uniform Building Code Board of Appeals 



Community Development Block Grant 43 Housing Handbook  

will serve as an appeal board to hear grievances of individuals regarding the administration 
and demolition. All grievances shall be answered in writing within fifteen (15) working days 
of receipt of the grievance. The decision of the Board of Appeals shall be final. 

 
9. Demolition Contract Procedures: Procurement procedures of the CDBG program must be 

used for procurement of services, materials and products. Competitive sealed bids for 
demolition will be taken for individual properties. 

 
Bids will be solicited from known contractors and notices to bidders will be publicly 
advertised. All parties interested in bidding will be provided with a clear and accurate 
description of the technical requirements of the service to be procured, as well as any other 
requirements which offers must fulfill and all other factors to be used in evaluating bids or 
proposals. 

 
In the event that an insufficient number of bids are received, or the bids are unacceptable, the 
work may be rebid or alternative procurement procedures may be used, such as the Small 
Purchases Procedures or Non-Competitive Negotiations. 

 
Awards shall be made only to responsible contractors who possess the potential ability to 
perform successfully under the terms and conditions of a proposed procurement. 
Consideration shall be given to price, as well as such matters as contractor integrity, 
compliance with public policy, record of past performance and financial and technical 
resources. 

 
Bids will be reviewed and approved by the Housing Rehabilitation Staff composed of the 
City Inspector, Deputy Inspector or contracted staff inspector. 

 
10.  Amendments to Demolition Plan: Provisions of the Demolition Plan may be amended by the 

City Commission and Commerce. 
 
Adoption of the Demolition Plan 

This Demolition Plan and all related attachments was approved and adopted by the City Council of 
the City of  on the   day of  , 20_ 

 

City of   
 
 

BY:   
Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST:   
City Clerk 
































































































































	1 Agenda 02.05.2024
	2 minutes 01.16.2024
	2 Minutes 01.25.2024
	CDBG Contract
	Housing Rehabilitation Plan - Caney- CDBG
	demo plan
	ER
	RROF

